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CONSOLIDATION OF STATEHOOD:
URBANISATION OF BORDER REGIONS
OF THE PRINCIPALITY OF SERBIA IN 1833-1839

Abstract: This paper elaborates on the measures and decisions of the authorities
in the Principality of Serbia that aimed to demarcate the borders and urbanise the
wider border areas, with the goal of greater separation of the Principality of Serbia
from the Ottoman Empire. The chronological framework of the paper spans from 1833
when the provisions of the Hatt-i sharif finally confirmed the border between the
Ottoman Empire and the autonomous Principality of Serbia, to 1839, which marked
the end of the first rule of Prince Milos. During this period, the main directions of
urbanisation in Serbia were determined. The paper indicates that the urbanisation of
Serbia’s border regions involved measures directly related to border arrangements
(establishment of border patrols, border crossings, customs, and quarantines), as well
as measures implemented throughout the territory of the Principality (spatial
organisation of towns, small towns, and villages, construction and restoration of
churches and monasteries). The impact of migration movements after the
establishment of the border on the emergence of new settlements or repopulation of
deserted settlements in the border areas of the Principality of Serbia was considered,
as well as the spatial planning of border varoses/towns and varosicas/small towns, and
the establishment of new road routes towards the border. Spatial organisation of
villages, although incomplete, was successfully implemented in the northwestern and
northern border regions of the Principality of Serbia.

Keywords: Principality of Serbia, urbanisation, border, Prince Milos, quarantines,
border posts, roads, churches, Aleksinac, Belgrade.

The 1830s were a turning point in the development of Serbia’s statehood and
society. The highest legal acts of the Ottoman Empire, the Hatt-i sharifs of 1829, 1830,
and 1833, confirmed the autonomous status of the Principality of Serbia. Independent
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internal administration with central and local authorities, the right of hereditary rule
for its rulers, religious freedoms, the judicial and educational system, as well as
capitalist economic relations in place of the anachronistic Ottoman feudal system and
freedom of trade constituted the foundations of Serbia’s autonomous rights. On the
other hand, the sovereignty of the Ottoman Empire was reflected in the retention of
military garrisons in fortresses in Serbia and Serbia’s obligation to pay the annual tribute.!

Despite the limitations imposed by the vassal state status, during his first rule
from 1815 to 1839, Prince Milos initiated revolutionary changes in all areas of Serbian
society with the ultimate goal of replacing the old, anachronistic, foreign, and Islamic
elements with new, national, and Christian ones. In a speech to the National Assembly
in February 1834, Prince Milo$ stated: “Seeing and reading how educated and
enlightened European nations progress in every aspect of their governance, | have
ardently desired to improve and establish governance in our homeland so that
nothing happens unsystematically in it”.2

Branko Maksimovic, a pioneer in the study of urbanism in Serbia, labels the years
from 1831 to 1861 as the period of the “foundation of new cities”. According to his
views, it was about the “ideology of urbanisation”, which was based on the awareness
of the then Serbian elite that they needed to overcome the backwardness of urban
and general culture compared to European societies due to the centuries of living
under Ottoman rule.?

Besides Serbia, similar processes unfolded in other national states restored in the
19t century in the Balkans (Greece, Romania, Bulgaria). In these countries, urbanisms
served “as a means of expressing the ideals of social life and shaping of the new
national identity”.* By founding new settlements and reconstructing the existing ones
in the restored Balkan states, it was necessary to reintegrate and incorporate
“universal values, political freedoms, progress, and well-being, while at the same time
eliminating all memories of the Ottoman rule, which left deep imprints in the urban
structure and landscape”.®

The urbanisation of the border territories of the Principality of Serbia in the
function of consolidating its statehood from 1833 when the Hatt-i sharif finally

! An overview of the synthesis of Serbia’s history in the 19' century: AywaH Batakosuh,
npearosop y: cmopuja modepHe Cpbuje 1800-2018, Oumutpuje hophesuh, beorpaa 2017,
26-37. See also: Papgow /bywwuh, Ucmopuja cpricke dpxicasHocmu. Cpbuja u LpHa Mopa —
HosoBeKoBHe cpricke Opxcase, beorpag — Hoeu Cag 2001.

2 Hapooe cprcku, reybe3Ha 6paho moja/becede kHe3a Musnowa u32080peHe Ha HaPOOHUM
CKYNWmMuHama u adpece HapPOOHUX CKYMWmuHa/, npupeamo, NPearoBop HanmMcao U PeYHmK
Makbe Mo3HaTUX peun cactasmo Pagomup J. Monoswh, Hosu Cag —Noprey MunaHosau, 2022, 113.

3 BbpaHko Makcumosuh, ,MaejHn pa3soj cprnckor ypbaHM3ma, nepuos PeKoHCTPyKLUuje
rpagosa go 1914. roguHe”, CnomeHuxk CAHY 121 (1978) 3; bpanucnas Kojuh, Bapowuye y
Cpbuju y XIX seky, beorpag 1970, 3.

4 Alexandra Yerolympos, Urban Transformations in the Balkans (1820-1920). Aspects of Balkan
Town Planning and the Remaking of Thessaloniki, Thessaloniki 1996, 11.

> Ibidem.
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determined the border between the Principality and the Ottoman Empire, until the
end of the first rule of Prince Milos in 1839, implied a series of governance measures,
with the final objective of emancipating the Principality of Serbia from the Ottoman
Empire to the greatest extent possible.® Those were measures that were implemented
in the territory of the Principality of Serbia (spatial organisation of towns and
settlements, construction and restoration of churches and monasteries) and specific
activities relating to border arrangements (constant control of the borderline,
establishment and arrangement of border crossings), which is why, in the new
circumstances, new settlements on the border were founded, or the importance of
the existing ones was growing. Migration movements, concretely the emigration of
the Muslim population and the immigration of primarily Serbian inhabitants after the
border changes, influenced the organisation of border towns and villages. In those
towns where the Muslim population remained (Belgrade, Smederevo, Sabac), the
Serbian parts were systematically organised. Given that “urbanisation is a
multidimensional process” and is etymologically associated not only with the
processes concerning the concepts of the “city” and “urban”, this paper will examine
these phenomena in Serbia within the specified chronological framework.”

It should be noted that there are few preserved legal regulations on this topic.
However, the decisions of the administrative authorities of the Principality, primarily
of Prince Milos, provide insight into the breadth and depth of the plan according to
which the border and border area of the Principality of Serbia were organised within
a short period of time.®

As mentioned above, the borders of the Principality of Serbia were finally
determined by the highest Ottoman legal act — the Hatt-i sharif of 1833. The northern
border, towards the Austrian Monarchy and Wallachia, extended from the confluence
of the Drina and Sava rivers, along the Sava and Danube, to the confluence of the
Timok river with the Danube. The eastern border, towards the Ottoman Empire,

® The statehood of Serbia in the new century was based on international agreements between
Russia and the Ottoman Empire (Bucharest Peace Treaty of 1812, Akkerman Convention of
1826, and Adrianople Peace Treaty of 1829). Between 1829 and 1833, the Porte issued three
Hatt-i sharifs granting autonomy to Serbia and a berat confirming hereditary princely status.
For information on the organisation of the Serbian-Ottoman border in the 19*" century, refer
to the following sources: Muxauno Faspunosuh, Musow ObpeHosuh I, Beorpaz 1912, 303—
324, 435-464, 505-510; Bragumup CtojaHuyesuh, “AGMUHUCTPATUBHO U BOjHO-NOANLN|CKO
ypeherbe cprcKko-TypcKke rpaHuue 3a Bpeme npBe BAafe KHesa Munowa”, Mcmopujcku
2nacHuk 3—4 (1951) 29-43; Pagow /bywwuh, KHexcesuHa Cpbuja 1830-1839, beorpaa 1986,
40-45; 265-268.

7 Bojucnas bypuh, “YpbaHu3aumja Kao nNpoLec Wmperba rpagckor HaumHa xusoTa”, 360pHUK
Mamuue cpricke 3a OpywmeeHe Hayke 54 (1969) 9.

8 The regulation of Prince Milo$ on the spatial organisation of villages from 20 March 1837 is
the only preserved legal regulation directly related to urbanisation in Serbia during this
period (360pHuUK 3aKoHaA u ypedaba y Kwaxecmsy Cpbuju y docadarum 360pHUUUMA
HewmamnaHux, a uzoamux o0 2. ¢pebpyapa 1835. 0o 23. okmobpa 1875. 200uHe, beorpap,
1877, 175-176).
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extended upstream along the Timok river to the confluence of the Bezdanica river,
and from there southeast to Svrljig mountains. The southern border encompassed
the mountains of Gramada, Mali and Veliki Jastrebac, Kopaonik, and went along the
Ibar river to its confluence with the Raska river, including the mountain of Cemerno.
The southwestern border extended along the mountains of Golija, Mucanj, and lvica,
to the upper course of the Drina river. The western border — except for the small area
around Mali Zvornik, which remained within the borders of the Ottoman Empire until
1878 — ran along the Drina river to its confluence with the Sava.®

The autonomous Principality of Serbia covered an area of 37,740 km?. According
to the census of 1834, there were 659,624 Serbs, while the number of others (Turks,
Vlachs, Roma, Jews and others) was around 39,000. The population density was 18.5
inhabitants per km2.1° There were a total of 2,231 settlements, including 35 varoses
[towns] and varosicas [small towns].*

In 1834, the Principality of Serbia was administratively divided into 15 districts
and 63 captaincies (later renamed into srez).*2 The number of districts and captaincies
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9 P. Jbywwh, MUcmopuja cpricke dpxcasHocmu, 30; JosaH byrapcku, Kapma KHsaxcecmea Cepbue,
beorpapg 1845. Mysej rpaga beorpaaa, | 1, 3834.

10°p, Jbywwuh, KHexesuHa Cpbuja, 72-73.

11 Nlenocasa Lsunjetnh, “Monuc ctaHoBHMWTBA M MMOBUHe y Cpbuju 1834. rognHe”, Mewosuma
epaha (Miscellanea) 13 (1984) 16, 114.

2 |bidem.
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changed in the following years due to the separation of certain districts (such as
Banjski and Rudnicki, for example) and the merger of smaller captaincies into larger
ones. Thus, in 1839, there were 17 districts and 52 captaincies. Prince Milos, in the
spirit of a centralist policy, merged several districts during this period, creating larger
administrative regions called “serdarstvo” [governorships]” (1834—1835) and “military
commands” (1835-1839).13

At the time of its establishment in 1834 and 1835, the border of the Principality
of Serbia towards the Ottoman Empire had an exclusively military character. The
borderline was marked by a system of earth trenches and embankments, cut-through
forests, and other markers. A permanent border guard post and patrols were set up
at the border. Also, following the example of the Austrian border service in the
Military Frontier, the so-called kordon was established on the borders of the
Principality. Each patrol had a commander (boluk-bashi) and a designated number of
guards who patrolled a specific border sector. The number of border patrols increased
from year to year: 1835-68, 1836—84, 1839-115. The border was crossed only at
specifically designated points. Subjects of the Ottoman Empire had to have valid travel
documents (teskera) to enter the Principality of Serbia, while Serbian citizens crossed
the border with passports issued by the Serbian authorities, valid for one year.'

Also, following the example of the Austrian Monarchy and other European states,
quarantines or “kontumac” were established along the Serbian border towards the
Ottoman Empire in 1836. The purpose of the quarantine was to prevent the spread
of infectious diseases. On 10 December 1836, “Novine srpske” (Serbian Newspaper)
reported that “His Serene Highness, our Gracious Lord Prince [Milos — note R. P.],
constantly caring for the well-being and happiness of his people and homeland, and
wishing to prevent the danger of the infectious disease of plague and its transmission
in Serbia, has been working for several months to establish and strengthen
quarantines in Serbia, at the borders with Turkish territories”.'® The most important
and largest quarantine was constructed in Aleksinac, in the south of the Principality.
During 1836 and 1837, quarantines were established in Bregovo, Radujevac, Mokra
Gora, Supovac, Ljubovija, Sepacka Ada near Loznica, and Ra¢a.’ During 1836, special
border crossings called “sastanci” (in the Austrian Monarchy rastels) were established,
following the example of the organisation in the Austrian Monarchy “for the
improvement and facilitation of trade”. These crossings were located at Pandiralo
and Gramada in the eastern part of the Principality, Vréka Cuka, Supovac, Jankova
Klisura, Vasilna Cesma, and Raska in the south and southwest.?”

1B p, Jbywuh, KHexesuHa Cpbuja, 196; AOMuHucmpamusHo-mepumopujasHe npomeHe y HP
Cpbuju 1834-1954, beorpag 1955, 5-10.

14 B. CtojaHueBuh, “AGMUHMCTPATUBHO 1 BOjHO-NoAKUMjCKO ypeherbe”, 38—39.

15 Cpricke HosuHe [=CH], 6p. 48, 28. HoBembap 1836.

16 State Archive of Serbia [=SAS], Principality Chancellery [=KK], register — Department V, 1836.

17 |bidem; JoBaH FaBpunosuh, PeyHuk eeoepagujcko-cmamucmuyHu Cpbuje, Beorpag,
1994, 229.
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Customs offices (dumrukane) were established at the borders with the Ottoman
Empire and the Austrian Monarchy. The Hatt-i sharif of 1833 stipulated that the
customs revenue should be collected by the Serbian instead of the Ottoman
authorities. On 2 January 1834, the Belgrade vizier ceremoniously handed over the
customs administration in Belgrade to Prince Milos. In April 1834, a customs office
was established in Aleksinac as a branch of the Belgrade customs office, as the
previous customs branch in Ni§ remained in the Ottoman Empire.'® Until 1839,
Serbian customs offices were established in Topcider (near Belgrade), Visnjica (near
Belgrade), Smederevo, Dubravica, Ram, Tekija, Kladovo, Radujevac, Vrika Cuka,
Pandiralo, Gramada, Aleksinac, Mokra Gora, Ljubovija, Sepac¢ka Ada, Raca, Mitrovica,
and Sabac.®®

The established border crossings of the Principality of Serbia, whether customs
offices, quarantines, or meeting places (sastanci), impacted the rapid transformation
of some border areas. The most significant transformation occurred in the border
town of Aleksinac, which until the 1830s was just a small Ottoman kasaba on the
Constantinople Road.

The quarantine in Aleksinac was constructed during 1836 and 1837. It had two
sections separated by a high fence. In the official area of the quarantine, there was a
building for inspections and listing of goods, a parlatory, a room for meetings and
talks between Serbian and foreign subjects, as well as a room for postal disinfection
and accommodation for the quarantine porter. Behind these official buildings, there
were huts with one or two rooms and a kitchen, enclosed by high wooden fences,
warehouses for storing goods, a hospital, a room for disinfection, and a mortuary. In
the second section of the quarantine, there were offices and apartment for the
quarantine staff. According to a list from 1836, the quarantine staff consisted of the
quarantine director, the quarantine doctor, an inspector responsible for registering
people and items in the quarantine protocol, a scribe, a warehouse supervisor, latov
— the person responsible for overseeing and preventing contact between people in
the quarantine, and about ten guards.?°

18 P, Jbywwuh, KHexesuHa Cpbuja, 276; Aparad Kpcmanosuh, LlapuHa u yapuHcKa caymwba y
Cpbuju 1804—-1914, beorpag 2006, 30-42. The dispute over the double customs duty
between Serbia and the Ottoman Empire in Ni$ and Belgrade was resolved in the spring of
1835 when a sultan’s decree (ferman) prohibited the collection of customs duty in Nis for
goods entering Serbia (Ibidem).

19 MuTa MNetposuh, duHaHcuje u ycemaHose o6HoemeHe Cpbuje 0o 1842, 1, beorpaa 1901, 371.

20 vladimir Macura, Carsija i gradski centar, Nis—Kragujevac 1984, 36. bpaHko lMepyHuuwnh,
AneKcuHay u oKoauHa, beorpag 1978,105-106; Bojucnas Muxaunosuh, U3 ucmopuje
caHumema y obHossbeHoj Cpbuju 00 1804 do 1860, beorpaa 1951, 531.
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Plan of Aleksinac quarantine (SAS, KK, I, 209)
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Alongside the construction of the quarantine, a church was also built in Aleksinac,
and its construction was completed in 1837. The church of St. Nicholas became the
central point of the new Serbian small town of Aleksinac. According to the plan of
the engineer Franz Janke from 1839, two orthogonal axes were set up next to the
church, with the one in the north-south direction still being the main transit artery of
Aleksinac. Over time, public buildings (the school and the local administration
building) were constructed on the town square, with the c¢arsija — the commercial
part of the town, located in the extension of the square.?
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Shape of the square in the urban plan of Aleksinac,
according to the plan by F. Janke from 1839%?

The small towns of Ljubovija and Raska, out of a total of eleven newly founded
small towns in Serbia in the 19* century, owe their existence to the border crossings
around which they developed, starting from the 1830s.2 The quarantine and customs
in Ljubovija were established in 1837 on the right bank of the Drina river, in an empty
field that once belonged to the former Muslim small village of Drabiéi. Ljubovija
quickly developed, and by 1844, it had 101 houses and nearly eight hundred
inhabitants.?* In the late 1830s and early 1840s, the first inhabitants of Raska were the
guards and officials of the border crossing (sastanak). The land on which the new

21 B, Kojuh, Bapowuuye y Cpbuju, 146—148; Ana Koctuh, LipkeeHa ymemHocm y KHexcesuHu
Cpbuju (1830-1882), beorpapg, 2023, 214-215.

2 B, Kojuh, Bapowuue y Cpbuju, 28; BpaHko Byjosuh, YmemHocm obHoemeHe Cpbuje 1791—
1848, beorpapg, 1986, 157-158.

23 “plans for quarantine buildings” in Serbia were made in 1837 (SAS, KK, registry-V
department, 1837).

24 ). Taspunosuh, PeyHuk eeozpagujcko-cmamucmuyHu Cpbuje, 99; /byba Masnosuh,
CoKoscKa Haxuja, Hacesba M NOPEKIo CTaHOBHULLTBA, Kib. 26, beorpag 1930, 341, 469-471;
The small town of Ljubovija was established in the immediate vicinity of the Drina river in the
1830s and 1840s. It was destroyed in a major flood in 1896 and was relocated to its current
location, six hundred meters away from the original site, in 1897 (lbidem).
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town would be established was purchased by the authorities of the Principality of
Serbia from a Muslim owner in 1839. The following year, the sale of plots to settlers
began, with the condition that they build houses “in a row” and pave the space in
front of them with stones to “give the ¢arsija a neat and attractive appearance”.?
According to the plan by Kosta Alkovi¢ from 1844, a new quarantine was established
in Raska, around which the urban planning of the town began in 1847. The town was
characterised by orthogonal intersecting streets and a spacious square.®

During the Ottoman rule in Serbia, there were only a few travel routes. The most
important one was the Constantinople Road, which connected Belgrade, Grocka,
Jagodina, Cuprija, Paraéin, Ni§, Sofia, and Edirne (Adrianople) with Constantinople
(Istanbul). Another route led from Belgrade along the Sava river to Sabac, Loznica,
Zvornik, and further towards Sarajevo. The third route extended along the right bank
of the Danube from Belgrade to PoZarevac, Porec, and Brza Palanka, while the fourth
route led from Belgrade to Kragujevac, further to Cacak and Ufice. Lastly, the fifth
route extended from Belgrade to Valjevo and continued towards UZice and the border
crossing at Mokra Gora.?”

By establishing the border crossings of the Principality of Serbia, some of the roads
that were used during Ottoman rule were intersected, and new road routes were
constructed towards the border crossings. In 1836/37, a road was constructed from
Svilajnac, or the Constantinople Road, through Neresnica and Majdanpek, continuing
to Donji Milanovac. According to the project of engineer Kordon in 1837/38, a road
was built over Miro¢ mountain from Donji Milanovac to Brza Palanka.?® Starting from
1838, a road was constructed along the Drina river, connecting the quarantine in Raca
to the quarantine in Ljubovija.?® Special efforts were made to redesign the section of
the Constantinople Road from Aleksinac to the border towards NiS. The expansion of
the road network continued in the following decades. For example, in the 1880s, a
road was built from Kraljevo to Raska through the precipitous Ibar valley.

During the 1830s, urbanisation in Serbia was closely related to dynamic
demographic movements. While the Muslim population was emigrating, the Serbian
population was immigrating. The population of the Principality of Serbia multiplied
rapidly, particularly from 1833 to 1840, with an increase of 150,703 inhabitants in
seven years. The population growth rate in Serbia during this period was comparable
to the population growth rate in the United States of America.°

% B. Makcumoswh, YpbaHusam y Cpbuju, 77; b. Byjosuh. YmemHocm obHoesveHe Cpbuje, 158—159.

% B. Kojuh, Bapowuue y Cpbuju, 134—136. Branko Maksimovi¢, Urbanizam u Srbiji, osnovna
ispitivanja i dokumentacija, Beograd 1938, 77.

27 Byk CredaHosuh Kapaywuh, “leorpadcko-ctatucTtnyko onucanuje Cpbuje”, AaHuya 1826—
1829; 1834, CabpaHa dena Byka C. Kapayuha VI, beorpag 1969, 139-140; T. P. hophesuh,
Cpbuja npe cmo 200uHa, beorpag 1946, 113-115.

8 p_ Jbywwuh, KHexesuHa Cpbuja, 106.

2 [1AC, KK, perucrap, B — ogesmetbe, 1838, 6p. 3020.

30 Munow Jaroguh, Hacervasare KHexcesuHe Cpbuje, beorpag 2003, 26-28.
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The table below presents changes in the number of settlements, houses, and
inhabitants in specific border captaincies/districts, based on the censuses from 1834

and 1844.3!
The name of 1834 1844
c?ptalncy, Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of
I.e. srez settlements houses inhabitants | settlements houses inhabitants
Kljuc 21 1,288 6,272 18 1,779 7,906
Zajecar 24 2,275 14,086 25 2,041 15,886
Aleksinac-
v 3 52 1,360 8,893 53 1,975 12,385
Razanj
Raca 30 1057 7,059 32 1,326 10,454
Rujan 58 2,390 16,442 63 3,485 25,150
Moravica 39 1,351 9,653 39 1,758 13,256
Azbukovica 18 867 6,122 18% 1,077 8,608
Jadar 39 2,099 11,833 35 2,501 15,521
Macva3* 39 3,502 23,672 38 4,153 27,046

While the number of settlements in the border administrative units changed
slightly, the increase in the number of houses and inhabitants clearly indicates
demographic changes in Serbia during the fourth and early fifth decades of the 19"
century.®

The establishment of the border of the Principality of Serbia and migrations
resulted in the emergence of new settlements in its border region. Under the

31 The border captaincies/districts whose administrative jurisdiction remained unchanged
between the two mentioned censuses are taken into account. The table was compiled
according to: /1. Lipnjetuh, “MNMonnc ctaHoBHULWITBA M UMOBKUHe y Cpbujn 1834. rognHe”, 110—
114; J. FraBpunosuh, PeyHukK 2eoepagpujcko-cmamucmuyHu Cpbuje, 34,61, 78, 80, 146, 168.

32 |n 1834, the Aleksinac and RazZanj districts were separate administrative units, while in 1844,
they became one administrative unit. Therefore, the census data for these two captaincies
from 1834 were added together.

3 The census did not include Muslim villages that were under the jurisdiction of the Ottoman
authorities in the neighbouring Zvornik Pashalik.

34 |n the 1834 census, the town of Sabac belonged to the Madva captaincy, but ten years later,
it was part of the Pocerina district. Therefore, the data for the town of Sabac were excluded
from the 1834 census of the Macva captaincy.

35 P, Jbywuh, KHexesuHa Cpbuja, 72; 360pHUK 3akoHa u ypedaba y Krbaxcecmay Cpbuju, 236.
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agreements between the Ottoman and Austrian Empires and the provisions of the
Hatt-i Sharif on Serbia’s autonomy, the river islands on the Sava and Danube, where
some settlements previously existed, belonged to Austria and the Ottoman Empire
(Wallachia), depending on which of these countries Serbia shared its border with.
The inhabitants of the Danube island of Pore¢, which was given to the Ottoman
Empire (Wallachia), were resettled with the assistance of the Serbian authorities in
1831 to the right bank, in the newly built settlement of Milanovac (present-day Donji
Milanovac). Donji Milanovac was especially significant in Serbian literature as the first
planned settlement in the Principality of Serbia, named after Milan, the eldest son of
the Serbian ruler. The plan of “the new settlement of Porec”, i.e. Milanovac from

Plan of “New Porec”, present-day Donji Milanovac, 1832 (SAS, KK, XXI, 1304)

36 B. Maksimovi¢, Urbanizam u Srbiji, 78; 97; Tuxomup P. hophesuh, Apxuscka epaha 3a Hacesva
y Cpbuju y speme npee snade kHe3a Musowa (1815-1830), Beorpapg, 1926, 159-161.
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1832, which was approved by Prince Milos after some revision, was drafted by Stefan
Stefanovi¢ Tenka, a local administrator in eastern Serbia. Although not an engineer
by education, Tenka’s plan for Milanovac foreshadowed the Serbian authorities’
intention to organise settlements in the future using a rectangular system.3®
Similarly, the village of Mihajlovac was founded downstream from Milanovac. The
inhabitants of Veliko Ostrvo on the Danube, desiring to come under the rule of the
Serbian Prince, secretly prepared for this during 1831 and 1832, as they were allowed
to settle on the right bank opposite the island. The new settlement of Mihajlovac was
established in 1833 and named after the younger son of Prince Milos.>” By the initiative
and with financial assistance of Prince Milos, a church was built in Mihajlovac in 1834.38
In the 1830s, almost all towns and small towns in Serbia, including those in the
border regions (Kladovo, Krusevac, Zajecar, Ivanjica, PoZega, Loznica, and Lesnica),
were planned and organised “in the European style”. This involved the establishment
of rectangular streets, the square, the commercial part of the town (¢arSsija, i.e.
bazaar), markets, as well as the demarcation and measurement of plots for the
construction of private and public buildings, which were also planned systematically.
At the beginning, prominent officials such as Laza Zuban and Stefan Stefanovic¢ Tenka
were involved in urban planning. From the mid-1830s, engineers from Austria were
engaged in this task, with the most notable ones being Franz Janke and Baron Franz
Kordon.?® In November 1833, in Zajecar, upon the order of Prince Milos, a specially
engaged engineer “organised the carsija”. This engineer was tasked with arranging
and planning the commercial part of the town (bazaar) in a systematic manner.*° After
Prince Milo$’s visit and the suggestions he gave them in the autumn of 1834, the
inhabitants of the small town of Kladovo organised the carsija two years later. Around
the carsija in Kladovo, street lines (sor) were laid out, and some houses were relocated
away from the Danube riverbank.*! After the emigration of the Muslim population
from the central Podrinje region in the summer of 1834, around three thousand Serbs
from Bosanska Krajina relocated to that territory in larger groups. The former
Ottoman kasaba of LeSnica and palanka Loznica were organised based on new
principles according to the plan by engineer Janke in 1837.%% In Le$nica, a spacious
square was formed by intersecting two streets at right angles. On the other hand, in
Loznica, the houses were aligned in a straight line.*® After the withdrawal of the Turks,
a new urban plan was also developed for Krusevac. According to this plan, the carsija
was relocated to a higher ground in 1836 after several delays due to financial

37 |bidem, 120-121, 135-138.

32 |bidem, 155. The authorities in Wallachia resettled about ten houses from the Danube island
of Simijan to Wallachia in April 1834, out of fear that they might cross over to Serbia.

39 P, Jbywwuh, KHexesuHa Cpbuja, 87

40 IAC, KK, XXXVI, 51 (mvKkpoduam [=mko.], ponHa [=pon.], 6poj [=6p.] 96.

41T, P. bophesuh, Apxusecka epaha, 169-171.

42 B. Maksimovi¢, Urbanizam u Srbiji, 81.

4 |bidem; b. Makcumoswh, MdejHu paseoj cprckoe ypbaHuzma, 2.
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difficulties. The previous location of the bazaar was described as “marshy and muddy”
land.* Due to favourable political and social circumstances, all towns and small towns
in Serbia, except Valjevo, experienced population growth in the 1830s. In Loznica,
there were 65 houses and 287 inhabitants in 1834, but five years later, there were 233
houses and 1,028 inhabitants, up by as much as 258%. In LeSnica, the number of
houses increased by 76, and the population grew by 362, resulting in a growth rate
of 102%. The population growth in Krusevac was 69%.%

On the other hand, in the major border towns of Belgrade, Sabac, and Smederevo,
the Muslim population, along with the Ottoman garrisons, remained until the 1860s
due to the violation of the Hatt-i Sharif provisions regarding their emigration.

Belgrade for the first time became the capital of Serbia briefly in 1839, and
permanently in 1841. The fact that it was the largest town in Serbia and the seat of
the Ottoman governor and the commander of the fortress, which housed a strong
Ottoman garrison, prevented the Serbian Prince from moving the capital there until
1839. However, from the beginning of the 1830s, Prince MiloS began spatially
organising the town of Belgrade and making preparations for relocating the capital
there, citing the provisions of autonomy and implementing urban measures. This
marked the beginning of the “Europeanisation” process of Belgrade, which lasted
over the following decades. Until the final Ottoman withdrawal from Belgrade in
1867, the “Ottoman” and “Serbian” Belgrade coexisted in parallel.*®

In the early 1830s, Belgrade was divided into three zones: the fortress — an
exclusively Ottoman area, “varo$ u Sancu” (town in the trench) — the settlement
around the fortress, surrounded externally by a deep moat with well-guarded
passages (gates) that segregated predominantly Muslim inhabitants, with a smaller
number of Jews and Christians, and “varos izvan Sanca” (town outside the trench) —
the sparsely populated area beyond the jurisdiction of the Ottoman authorities.*’

The transfer of customs collection under the auspices of the Serbian authorities
encouraged Prince Milos to erect, in 1834 and 1835, what is believed to be the first
building in Belgrade in the Western architectural style — Bumrukana (a Turkish term
for a customs house). This two-storey building, with a rectangular base and a series
of symmetrical arched openings on the ground floor and rectangular openings on the
first floor, featured a central entrance. Situated right on the bank of the Sava river
and, therefore, on the border with Austria, it was visible to all those coming from
that side, symbolising the beginning of a new era for Serbia.*®

4T. P. bophesuh, Apxusecka epaha, 186—189.

4 P, Jbywwuh, KHexcesuHa Cpbuja, 85-86.

4 Henan Makymwesuh, OcmaHcKo-cpricku beoepad: susyesHocm u Kpeuparbe 2padcko2
udeHmumema (1815-1878), beorpag 2014.

47 Ibidem, 247-251.

48 The construction of Dumrukana (the customs house) cost the state treasury half a million
groschen (M. Netposuh, @uHaHcuje u ycmaHose 1, 762); b. Byjosuh, YmemHocm obHosmeHe
Cpbuje, 146—-147; AnsHa bypwuh 3amono, Mpadumerou beoeapda 1815-1914, beorpaa 1981.
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Building plan of Bumrukana in Belgrade, 1834 (SAS, KK, VI, 417)

The construction of Serbian Belgrade in Savamala was a much more ambitious
undertaking than building a single representative building. Savamala was an area
outside the Belgrade fortress where an unregulated settlement had existed for
decades. Prince Milos, with the intention of organising this space, forcibly relocated
the hitherto inhabitants of Savamala to another part of the town. Then, with his
approval, from 1835 to 1837, in line with European architectural concepts, the
barracks, the Council building, and the new prince’s palace were constructed. The
latter two buildings marked a crucial change in the spatial concept, as they abandoned
the “Balkan-centric foundation” and adopted a new type of foundation in the shape
of the Cyrillic letter P (“N”), characterised by elongated corridors and numerous rooms
on both sides of the corridor.*® In the early 1850s, an orthogonal street grid was
established around those buildings in Belgrade, creating the Serbian Belgrade as an
urbanistic counterpart to the “Ottoman” Belgrade in the fortress area.

Similarly to Belgrade, Serbian urban spaces, in contrast to the Ottoman ones, were
formed in other mixed-population border towns of Serbia where Ottoman fortresses
existed, along with a certain number of Muslim inhabitants in the suburbs. The
conflict between Serbs and Turks in the mixed-population UZice in 1832 led to the
Serbian population’s forced relocation from UZice to PoZega, located about twenty
kilometres away. In 1832, Laza Zuban, an official of Prince Milos, marked the location

49V, Macura, Carsija i gradski centar, 84, 35; b. Byjosuh, YMemHocm o6HosmeHe Cpbuje, 147.
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in PoZega where houses and shops would be built, featuring a circular square in the
centre of the town.>° Thus, PoZega, a planned Serbian settlement, became the centre
of Serbian authority in that part of Serbia until 1835. In the Serbian carsija (bazaar)
in Smederevo, according to the plan approved by Prince Milos on 11 April 1837, plots
were designated for the construction of a two-storey building for the district court and
customs, a school, and a church.5! The Serbian border town in Sabac, with its straight
and wide streets, was established and organised in the 1820s and 1830s, contrasting
with the Muslim suburb and fortress.*?

The transformation of an Ottoman kasaba or palanka into a Serbian varos and
varosica was carried out ceremonially and ritually. In 1836, a cross was erected in the
centre of the relocated Krusevac ¢arsija, and priests ritually blessed the water. This
symbolic act bestowed a Christian character upon the newly established Serbian
market town.>

From the beginning of his rule, Prince Milos systematically restored and built
churches and monasteries, especially from 1831 when the Church in the Principality
of Serbia became autonomous. In the border areas of the Principality, numerous
churches were restored and constructed (Zajecar, Mihajlovac, Krusevac, Loznica,
LeSnica etc.).>* The chain of Orthodox churches along the borders and in the interior
of the Principality of Serbia indicated the Orthodox Christian identity of the renewed
Serbian state. In the region of eastern Serbia, specifically in the newly established
Timok Diocese, which became a part of the Belgrade Metropolitanate in 1833, there
were at least fifty churches according to the census from 1836. Approximately twenty
of these churches were constructed during that very decade.*

The Church of St. Archangel Michael in the new settlement of Mihajlovac was built
shortly after the establishment of the settlement. Prince Milos personally supervised
the construction of the church, which began in April and was completed in the
autumn of 1834. The architectural design of the church in Mihajlovac is typical of the
1830s: a single-nave stone building without a dome and bell tower, featuring a
decorated western portal, rectangular windows, a nave, and an altar space separated
by an iconostasis. Moreover, Prince Milos sent the text of the inscription, which stated
that the church was built in 1834 through the “benevolence of faithful Prince Milos”,

S0P, Jbywuh, KHexesuHa Cpbuja, 331-332; B. Maksimovi¢, Urbanizam u Srbiji, 73—74; 78-79.

51 NleoHTunje NMasnosuh, Cmedepeso y 19. seKy, 3aHUMAHA, UMOBUHA U 3apada CMaHOBHUKA
npema nonucuma 1833. u 1862/63. 200uHe, Cmegepeso 1969, 91; bpaHko MepyHuunh,
Hacesve u epad Cmedepeso, Cmepepeso 1977, 459-461.

52 Bnagnumup CrojaHuesumh, “lLabau, u Labauka Haxuja og n3bujarba MpBor cprckor ycTaHka
[0 Kpaja KHe3 Munowese Bnaae”, y: Wabay y npowsnocm 2, Wabay 1980, 143-147;
BpaTtucnas CrojaHoBuh, “YpBaHUCTUUKO—apPXMTEKTOHCKM pa3soj Lanua Tokom 19. u
noyetkom 20. Beka”, y: LWabay y npownocmu 3, LWabau, 1984, 273-294.

53 T. P. hopheswuh, Apxuscka epaha, 188.

% A. Koctuh, LipkeeHa ymemHocm y KHexceguHu Cpbuju, 205-206, 207-208, 217.

5 HepesbKo Pagocassbesuh, “Tumoudka envckonuja no nonucy us 1836”, Micmopujcku yaconuc
52 (2005) 263-264.
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during the administration of Metropolitan Petar and as a dedication for all other
regions that were within the borders of Serbia since 1833.°® On the other side of
Serbia, in Belgrade, above the Bumrukana building, the construction of a monumental
cathedral dedicated to St. Archangel Michael (the Cathedral Church) began in the
summer of 1837. The main construction works were completed in 1839, and the
raising of the cross on the church’s tower during the following year turned into a
significant state and public celebration.” In Belgrade, on the border of the Principality
of Serbia, in the immediate vicinity of the Ottoman fortress, the monumental
Orthodox church embodied in the best way the renewed sovereignty of Serbia.

Society in 19™-century Serbia was predominantly rural. The proportion of the rural
population in 1839 amounted to 92.25%, according to the estimates.>® During the
fourth decade of the 19t century, Prince Milo$ endeavoured to organise rural
settlements. The rural population lived in villages where houses and households
covered vast areas. Some villages, according to Vuk Karadzi¢, were even larger in size
than Vienna. However, in terms of the number of houses and inhabitants, during the
fourth decade of the 19 century, rural settlements in Serbia were relatively small —
99% of all villages had up to two hundred households.>®

The decree of Prince Milos from 20 March 1837, named “uSoravanje sela”
(grouping village houses into streets), is the first known and preserved legal regulation
in the field of urban planning in 19™-century Serbia. The regulation stipulated that
distant houses and households in villages should be consolidated and brought closer
together for the sake of further general economic prosperity.®® In the explanatory
statement accompanying this regulation, it was noted that “the time has passed when
we had to hide in the woods and streams [during Ottoman rule — note R. P.], that
now we do not need to do that, that it is better to live together, in order, and in
proximity, brothers with brothers, friends with friends, and neighbours with
neighbours, rather than being scattered apart from each other” %!

In fact, the spatial planning of villages in the border regions of Serbia began before
Prince Milo$’s decree in 1837. Jevrem Obrenovié, the brother of Prince Milos and the
administrator of three border districts in northwestern Serbia, started this process
in Macva in the late 1820s, following the example of Austrian villages in neighbouring
Srem. Around thirty Macva’s villages were spatially arranged by the mid-1830s. In
addition to the Sabac district, some villages were also consolidated in the Danube

% UpeHa hmposwh, “Lipksa ceeTor apxaHhena Muxanna y Muxajnosuy”, y: CakpasnHa mornogpaguja
HezomuHcke KpajuHe, npup. HeHaa Makysbesuh, HerotuH 2012, 112-125; T. P. hophesuh,
ApxuscKa epaha, 147.

57 The furnishing and decoration of the Cathedral Church were completed in 1845 (B. Byjosuh,
YmemHocm ob6HoemweHe Cpbuje, 116—125).

8 P, Jbywuh, KHexesuHa Cpbuja, 79.

%9 |bidem, 80-81.

0 360pHUK 3aKoHa U ypedaba y Kraxcecmay Cpbuju, 175-176.

61 T. P. hophesuh, Apxuecka epaha, 578-579.
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region, Pomoravlje, Sumadija, and eastern Serbia. However, relocating houses in
mountainous and hilly areas proved to be challenging due to the terrain’s configuration,
predominantly livestock production of the population, the high cost of the
undertaking, and the inhabitants’ reluctance to change their established way of life.®?

In just a few years Prince Milos managed to organise and define the borders of the
Principality of Serbia and set the direction for its further urban development. This
was a significant step, as Serbia started transforming its inherited Oriental urban
environment into a European urban style. Although this process unfolded throughout
the 19* century, its roots dated to the 1830s. It is not strange that in the early fifth
decade of the 19* century English traveller Andrew Archibald Paton, after visiting
Serbia, published the book Servia, the Youngest Member of the European Family...%
From the late 1830s, crossing the border of the Principality of Serbia meant, in fact,
entering the European urban space.

62 P, Jbywuh, KHexcesuHa Cpbuja, 75-79; b. Byjosuh, YmemHocm obHoesmeHe Cpbuje, 155—
157; P. ). Nonoswuh, “NMpocTopHM 1 apXUTEKTOHCKM Npeobparkaj mauyBaHCKUX cenay 19. Beky”,
y: Ceno bankaHa. KoHmuHyumemu u rnpomeHe kpo3 ucmopujy/The Balkan Village.
Continuities and Changes Through History, beorpag 2017, 77-96.

& https://www.gutenberg.org/ebooks/16999.
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Pagomup M. Monosuy

YKPENJIEHUE TOCYAAPCTBEHHOCTU:
YPBAHU3ALMA NOrPAHUYHBIX TEPPUTOPUM
KHAMECTBA CEPBMUA B 1833-1839IT.

Pestome

ABTOHOMHbI FOCYAAPCTBEHHbIN CTATYC, NPU3HAHHbLIA BbICLUIMMM MPABOBbIMMU
akTamn OcmaHckoi mmnepun (1829, 1830 m 1833 roga), MO3BOAMA HayaTb
BCECTOPOHHUE pedopmbl B KHsxkecTBe Cepbum nom pyKoBoACTBOM KHs3s Musowa
ObpeHoBunya. B wuctopum ypbaHusaumm Cepbum nepuon € TPUALATLIX A0
wecTnaecaTbix rogos XIX Beka HasblBaeTca “nepnoaom OCHOBaHUS HOBbIX rOpog0B”.
XpoHonoruyeckne pamku pabotbl — 1833 roa, Korga cornawieHmem Xatuwepuda
6blNa ycTaHoBNEHa rpaHuua mexagy OCMaHCKOM umnepuern U aBTOHOMHbIM
KHsxecteom Cepbuu, 1 1839 rog — 3aBepLueHmne NepBoro npasaeHns KHasa Muniolua,
KOTOpPbIN onpeaennn 0CHOBHOE HanpasaeHue ypbaHu3aLmm. BsaumocornacoBaHHble
ynpaB/ieHYeckMe Mepbl HanpasaeHbl Ha BblgeneHve KHsaxectsa Cepbun us
OcmaHcKon umnepuun. FpaHULa MeXKAy BacCasibHbIM KHAMKECTBOM U CYITaHCKOW
nmnepueit B 1834 n 1835 rogax umena UCKIOUMTENIbHO BOeHHOe o6o3HauveHue. Mo
06pasLy aBCTPUIACKOM MNOrPaHUYHOM CyXKObl Ha rpaHuMLax KHAXKecTBa No OTHOLLEHMIO
K OcMaHCcKoM nmnepum 6bi110 YCTAaHOBIEHO NOCTOSHHOE HabAoAEHME U KOHTPOIb 33
rPaHUYHON JNIMHMEN, Tak HasbiBaemMblli “KopaoH”. OnpegeneHbl rpaHUYHble
nepexonbl, TO €CTb TAMOXKHW, KAPAHTUHbI U NOCTbl. CaMbIiM 3HAYMMbIM NOFPAHUYHBIM
mecTom KHsaxkectBa Cepbum no oTHoweHUo K OCMaHCKoM nmnepun ctan AnekcuHel,
Ha KoHCcTaHTMHOMNOIbCKOW fopore. Penpe3eHTaTUBHOE 34aHNE LLEePKBU B ANleKCUHLE,
3aBepuweHHoe B 1837 roay, 6bl10 yrnoBoi TOYKOM HebBONbLIOrO rOpPoOAKa,
OpraHmsoBaHHOro no nnaaHy 1839 roga, B COOTBETCTBMM C KOTOPbIM ABE YAMLbI
nepecekanncb nog nNpPsMbIM Yraom, 06pasysa OPTOrOHANbHYIO CXemy yauu,.
MocTpoeHHble NorpaHUYHbIE NEPEXobl HA He3acesIeHHbIX MecTax HenocpeaCcTBEHHO
NoBAWANM Ha NoABAEHUE ropoaKos J1loboBuMA 1 Palwka. B pesynbraTte ycTaHOBAEHUA
rpaHuubl KHaxectBa Cepbun n nepeceneHua HaceNeHUs Ha ero TeppUTopuio
BO3HMWK/IM COBEPLUEHHO HOBbIE, NIAHUPOBOYHO OPraHN30BaHHbIE NOCENEHUSA, TAKNE
Kak dorwn MunaHosay n Muxajnosay, Ha [lyHae, a TakXe ropoaKu, U3 KOTOpbIX
BblCENMMAUCL MycynbMaHe (Knagoso, Kpywesau, 3ajeyap, Meawuua, lNoxera,
JNlo3Huua un NlewHunua), 6binm opopmneHsl “esponelickum” obpasom. B ropogax, rae
CYLLECTBOBA/IM BOEHHbIE NOCENEHUA U MYyCYyIbMAHCKOe HaceneHue (benrpag, LWabal,
CmepepeBo), cepbCcKmMe YacTu 3TUX ropoA0B HblIM OPraHNM30BaHbI NO OPTOrOHA/bHOM
CXeme yauuy, € NAoWagbilo U KOMMEPYECKMMM YacTaMu — Basapamu. BaxkHbim
cermeHTom ypbaHusaumnmn KHaxkectsa Cepbum 6biam CBATbIHU, KOTOPbIE CTPOUIUCH
WY PEKOHCTPYMPOBANUCH Ha TeppuTopumn KHsxkecTea Cepbumn. KHsasb Munow yaensn
ocoboe BHMMAHME CTPOUTENBCTBY M PEKOHCTPYKLMWU LLePKBEW B MOTrPaHUYHOM
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obnactn. PenpeseHTatuBHbIN Cobop CeATOro Muxauna B benrpage, CTpoMTeNbCTBO
KOTOpOro Hayanocb B 1837 roay, LepKoBb B ANEKCUHLLE, a TAaKKe LEePKOBb B HOBOM
noceneHnn Muxannosau, u pag Apyrux Lepkseln 613N rpaHULbl YKa3biBaan Ha
NpPaBOCNABHbIN XapakTep o6HOBAEHHOro cepbCcKoro rocygapcTea. YKas KHA3A
Mwunowa ot 20 mapTta 1837 roga o “ywopeHun gepeseHb” (wop = yauua), o
NPOCTPAHCTBEHHOW OpraHW3aLunu AepeBeHb, C OPTOrOHa/bHOM cxeme yauL,
CYUMTaeTCa nepBbiM 3aKOHOAATe/bHbIM aKTOM B o06sactu  ypbaHMama U
npocTpaHcTBeHHOro nsaHa B Cepbuun B XIX Beke. MNpocTpaHCTBEHHasA opraHM3auus
CeN, XOTA U He NONHOCTbI, YCMEeLHO OCYLLEeCTB/IeHa B PaBHUHHbIX U NOrPaHUYHbIX
palioHax ceBepo-3anagHon 1 ceBepHoM YacTn KHsaxkectsa Cepbun.

Pagomup J. Monosuh

YTBPBUBAKE APXKABHOCTU:
YPBAHU3ALUIA NOrPAHUYHUX KPAJEBA
KHEXXEBUHE CPBMIJE 1833-1839. TOAMNHE

Pesunme

AyTOHOMaH AprKaBHU cTaTyc KHexeBuHe Cpbuje NpM3HaT HajBULLMM NPaBHUM
akTMma OcmaHcKor uapcTea (1829, 1830. n 1833) omoryhuo je noa, pykoBoACTBOM
KHe3a Munolua novyetak cBeobyxsaTHUX pepopmu y KHexesuHu Cpbujn. Y nctopmjm
ypbaHusma Cpbuje, pasgobsbe oa Tpuaecetmx A0 wesnecetux roguMHa 19. Beka
Ha3MBa ce NepuoaoM ,0CHMBatba HOBUX rpasoBa”’. XpOHONOLWKM OKBMPU pada cy
1833. kaga je ogpenbama Xatuwepuda ogpeheHa rpaHuua namehy OcmaHckor
LuapcTea U ayToHomHe KHexeBuHe Cpbuje 1 1839 — 3aBplueTak npse BAagaBuHe
KHe3a Mwunolwa, Koju je oapeamo rnaBHW npasay ypbaHusauuje. MehycobHo
KOOpAMHMCaHe yrnpaB/bayke Mepe umasne cy 3a Uu/b u3asajarbe KHexkeBunHe Cpbuje
13 OcMaHcKor LapcTea. MpaHuLa namehy BaszasHe KHeXeBUMHE U CU3ePEHCKOT LLapcTBa
nmana je 1834. n 1835. rogmHe UCK/by4nBO BOjHO obesnexje. o y3opy Ha ayCTPUjCKy
rpaHMYyapcKky cayKby, Ha rpaHuuama KHexesBuHe npema OCMaHCKOM LapCTBy
YCMOCTaB/beH je CTa/IHM HaZA30p M KOHTPO/A FPAHUYHE NIMHMje, TaKO3BaHU KOPAOH.
OppeheHn cy rpaHW4YHM npenasu, TO jecT LapuHe, KapaHTMHW WM CacTaHaLu.
Haj3HauajHuje norpaHuyHo mecto KHexkeBuHe Cpbuje npema OcmaHCKOM LapcTBy
noctao je AnekcuHay, Ha Llapurpagckom nyty. PenpeseHTaTMBHO 34akbe LPKBeE Y
AneKcuHUYy Koja je 3aBpLueHa 1837. npeAcTaB/bano je yraoHy TauKy BapoLlmLe Koja je
ypeheHa npema nnaHy us 1839. npema Kojem ce ABe yauLe Ceky nog npaBum yrjiiom,
OKO KOjUX je HacTasa OPTOroHasiHa CXema y/mLa. YCnoCcTaB/beHW rpaHUYHM Npenasm
Ha HeHace/beHUM MeCTUMA SMPEKTHO Cy YTULLAMM HA HacTaHaK Bapowuua /bybosuje
n Pawke. Ycnen ycnoctaB/bakba rpaHuue KHexkeBuHe Cpbuje n gocesbaBakba
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CTAaHOBHMLUTBA Ha HeHY TEPUTOPMUjy HacTasa cy NOTNYHO HOBA, NIAHCKM ypeheHa
Hacesba Jorwn MunaHosal, n Muxajnosay, Ha [lyHaBy, AOK Cy BapOLUM 1 BapoLInLLe U3
KOjux cy ce ucenmnm mycnmmanu (Knagoso, Kpyuwesal, 3ajedap, MBarnua, MNosxera,
JNlo3Hunua n NlewHunua) ypeheHu ,,no eBponckn”. Y BapoLmMma y Kojuma cy nocrojane
BOjHE MOCaje M MyCIMMaHCKO CTaHOBHMLWLTBO (Beorpag, LWabau, Cmeaepeso) ypeheHu
CY CPMCKM ,eN10BU TUX BapOLLM CA OPTOTOHA/IHOM CXEMOM YANLA, TPFOM U MOC/I0BHUM
[eN0BMMa BapolLM — Yyaplunjama. BaxaH cermeHT ypbaHusauuje KHeskesnHe Cpbuje
YMHWUAEe Cy cakpanHe rpaheBuHe Koje cy nogmsaHe Uan obHaB/baHe Ha TepUTopuju
KHexkeBuHe Cpbuje. KHe3 Munol je nocebHy nakkby NOKNaHkao U3rpaarbu 1 06HoBMU
LpKaBa y rpaHMYHOM nogpyuyjy. PenpeseHtatveHa CabopHa LpKBa y beorpagy unja
rpagHoa je 3ano4veta 1837, upkBa y ANEKCUHLLY, Na LPKBa y HOBOM Hacesby Muxajnosuy
M HWU3 APYrUX LPKaBa OKO rpaHuLe, yKa3uBasie Cy Ha MPaBOCNABHU WUAEHTUTET
obHOB/bEHE CpMCKe AprKaBe. YKas KHesa Munolwa og 20. mapTa 1837. roanHe o
,YLIopaBaky cena”, To ject NpocTopHom ypehery cesla cmaTpa ce NPBUM 3aKOHCKUM
nponucom y obnactu ypbaHmsma y Cpbuju y 19. Beky. MNpoctopHo ypehere cend, nako
HEMOTMNYHO, YCMELIHO je CNPOBeAEHO Y PAaBHUYAPCKMM M MNOrPaHUYHUM Npeaenmma
ceBepo3anagHe 1 ceBepHe KHexkesnHe Cpbuje.
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